# **Cello How-To Guide**

**Post-Paid Billing** 



## Contents

1	Intro	roduction to Post-Paid Billing					
2	How	How does Post-Paid billing work?					
3	Billi	ng models in Post-Paid	6				
	3.1	Flat Billing (Unlimited Usage based Billing)	6				
	3.1.1	How to configure Flat Billing	6				
	3.2	Block Billing	8				
	3.2.1	How to configure Block Billing	8				
	3.2.1.1	How to add Slab Rates	9				
	3.2.1.2	How does Cello will block the user once the customer reach the threshold	. 11				
	3.3	Metered Billing	. 12				
		. How to configure Metered Billing with Bundled usage	. 13				
	3.3.1.1	How to Add Line Items	. 14				
4	Hyb	rid Billing (Combination of Block Billing, Metered Billing)	. 16				
5	Bun	dled Usage	. 16				
	5.1	How to configure bundled usage	. 17				
6	Тахі	ng					
	6.1	Configure Global Tax Rates					
	6.2	Tax Ordinals					
	6.3	Configure Tenant Specific Tax					
7		ng Cycles/Frequency					
,	7.1	How to Configure Billing Cycle/Frequency					
	7.2	Billing Cycle and Free Trial Period					
	7.3	Billing Start Date					
	7.4	Billing Charge Day					
	7.5	How to De-Activate the Tenants?	. 24				



	7.6	How to extend Tenant License?	25
8	In	voice Generation	26
	8.1	Raising the First Invoice for a Tenant	27
	8.2	Components of Invoice	28
	8.3	Invoice Status	29
	8.3.1	1 How is the Invoice amount calculated for Block Billing Model	30
	8.3.2	2 How is the Invoice amount calculated for Cumulative/Usage based Billing Model	30
9	U	nderstanding Pro-Ration (Auto Adjustments)	32
	9.1	Proration Category	32
	9.1.1	1 Pro-Ration/Adjustment in Pay-as-you-go Model	32
	9.1.2	2 Pro-Ration during Upgrade & Downgrade	34
	9.1.3	3 Scenario 2: Pro-rata on account cancelation (Customer Exit) <change></change>	36
	9.1.4	4 Email Notification related to Upgrade/Downgrade	36
	9.2	Invoice Manual Adjustments	37
	9.2.1	1 How to make Adjustments in Invoice	37
	9.3	Tenant Invoice	41
	9.4	Clients Invoices	42
	9.5	Invoice Search	43
1	0	FAQs	44
1	1	Contact Information	46



### 1 Introduction to Post-Paid Billing

It's one of a charging model for recurring SaaS based businesses. In this model, the cost of the subscription will be charged from the customer after the <u>billing frequency</u> opted by the Customer.

#### Example:

In the below scenario, **\$6.95/Month** (Refer the 2<sup>nd</sup> plan) will be charged by end of the month.



## 2 How does Post-Paid billing work?

Customers choose a suitable subscription plan and submit the customer details. The Customer will not be forced to update the credit card information until the Due date. While the customer nearing the due date the customer has to provide the credit card details to have the subscription active. The primary difference between the prepaid vs postpaid billing is the customer need not provide the credit card upfront.

#### Note:

If the Customer doesn't update the payment information until the due/trial expiry date, the application will "Suspend" the account by default.



# **Post-Paid Billing Process Flow**





### 3 Billing models in Post-Paid

There are 4 billing models supported Post-paid model, they are

- 1. Flat Billing (Flat cost)
- 2. Block Billing
- 3. Metered Billing
- 4. Hybrid Billing (combination of Block & Metered Billing)

### 3.1 Flat Billing (Unlimited Usage based Billing)

A flat fee, also referred to as a flat rate, refers to a pricing structure that charge a single fixed fee for a service, regardless of usage by the end of every billing Cycle.

**Note:** This model might work best for Starters who want to grab the market by giving unlimited access to the application for a fixed cost.

### 3.1.1 How to configure Flat Billing

**Step1:** Navigate to Subscription >> Manage Subscriptions and Create Subscription Plans with threshold as "0" for all the meterable components.

\star Cello <b>SaaS</b>				≓ Change Tenant	admin@company.com 🔻	
🛱 My Account	■ ManageTenant ✓ SelfTenantAdministrator	ManageTenantLicense Self Upgrade Subscription Package				^
Subscription	User					
출 Tenant	ManageAllUser	☑ ManageUser				
ဇ Access Control	Set Usage Maximum Capacity					
✿ Configuration	O Assignable usage should be less than or	equal to assigned usage				
13 Business	Assigned Usage		Assignable Usage			
Events	Billing		No Usage Available.			
Notifications	BillingInvoiceAmount (Maximum: 0)					
🛢 Workflow	BillingInvoiceYTD (Maximum: 0)					
28 Reporting	0					
≯ AddOn	1 User User (Maximum: 0)		_			
Monitor	0					Ξ
<b>≡</b> ©	Set "0" to all the meterabl	e components to allow unlimited access			🖺 Save Cancel	



\star Cello <b>SaaS</b>					≓ Change Tenar	ıt admin@company.com▼	ŵ
🛱 My Account	Package Management						^
Subscription	Search	GO!				+ Create	
출 Tenant							
	Name		Trial Period		Manage Price Plans	Edit	
ဇ Access Control	Basic			60	je se	C.	
📽 Configuration	Premium			30	P	L.	
+o configuration	Reseller Package			0	P.	۷	=
ta Business	Ultimate			0	p.	6	
Events	Show 10 entries Showing 1 to 4 of 4 entries					N < 1 > N	
Notifications							
🕿 Workflow	Package Distribution						
2 Reporting							
🎢 AddOn		Premium - 19.81 %					
Monitor				Ва	sic-41.51 %		
<b>≡</b> ©							

**Step2:** Click on Manage Pricing Plans icon against the newly created Subscription Plan. Refer the below Image

\star Cello <b>SaaS</b>		≓ Change Tenant	admin@company.com 👻 🎄
🛍 My Account	Manage Price Plans - Basic		Save Cancel
③ Subscription	Plan Details (Referenceld:dd4780c3-9398-e311-bf1d-7845c443373d)		
嶜 Tenant		Plan Description	
৭ Access Control	Basic	Basic	A
🕫 Configuration	Plan Price 99 \$	Frequency* Monthly	•
t3 Business Events			
Notifications	Line Items		+ Add
😫 Workflow	Line items not yet added!		
🚳 Reporting			
🎢 AddOn			
Monitor			
ۍ			

Step3: Click on Add Price Plan and fill the fields

Plan Name: Name of the Pricing Plan

Plan Description: Friendly description of the Pricing plan

Plan Price: The flat cost of the subscription Plan

Frequency: Choose an appropriate Billing Frequency for the Subscription Plan



Line Items: Do not Setup any Line Items to Configure Flat Billing

Step 4: Save & Close

**Note:** The Metering Engine of Cello will still meter the consumption of the customer, but the invoice will not consider the total consumption and hence it will simply raise invoice with the flat rate.

### 3.2 Block Billing

In this model, a flat cost will be charged for a <u>bundled usage</u>. In the below pricing chart, refer the **Venti Plan**. Customer who opt this plan can use only use up to 100 employees, 10GB of disk Space etc., but beyond this usage the subscriber will not be allowed to use the application, hence this model of pricing is called as **Block billing** model. If they want to further use the application, either they have to wait till the next month or upgrade the subscription to higher package with more bundled usage.

	SHORT	TALL	GRANDE	VENTI	UNLIMITED
EMPLOYEES	15	25	50	100	Unlimited
DISKSPACE	200M	1GB	3GB	10GB	Unlimited
JOB POSTINGS	3	10	Unlimited	Unlimited	Unlimited
USTOM JOB BOARD	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
CUSTOM LOGO	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
MPLOYEE REVIEWS		Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
PRICE	\$ <b>19</b> /month	s49 <sub>/month</sub>	\$ <b>99</b> /month	\$ <b>199</b> /month	\$399/month
		GET S	STARTED NOW		

Refer <u>here</u> for Invoice generation process for block billing model.

### 3.2.1 How to configure Block Billing

**Step1:** Navigate to Subscription >> Manage Subscriptions and Create Subscription Plans with appropriate threshold value configured for each of the meterable components.

**Step2:** Click on Manage **Pricing Plans** icon against the newly created Subscription Plan. Refer the below Image



★ Cello <b>SaaS</b>			≓ Change Tenant	admin@company.com 🔻  🏦
🛍 My Account	(*) Manage Price Plans - Basic			Save Cancel
Subscription	Plan Details (ReferenceId:dd4780c3-9398-e311-bf1d-7845c443373d)			
嶜 Tenant	Plan Name*	Plan Description		
၀ Access Control	Basic	Basic		
📽 Configuration	Plan Price 99	\$ Frequency* Monthly		•
t3 Business Events				
Notifications	Line Items			+ Add
🛢 Workflow	Line items not yet added!			
2 Reporting				
🎢 AddOn				
Monitor				
ۍ 🖿				

Step3: Click on Add Price Plan and fill the fields

Plan Name: Name of the Pricing Plan

Plan Description: Friendly description of the Pricing plan

Plan Price: The flat cost of the subscription Plan

Frequency: Choose an appropriate Billing Frequency for the Subscription Plan

Line Items: Setup the Line Items to Configure Block Billing

#### 3.2.1.1 How to add Slab Rates

Step 1: Click on Add (Refer the below Image)



★ Cello <b>SaaS</b>						≓ Change Ter
🛱 My Account	🕢 Manage Price	Manage Line Item			×	
3 Subscription	Plan Details <b>(Refer</b> e	Name *		Description		
嶜 Tenant	Plan Name*				h	
	Basic	Factor Type	•	Calculation Type		
🕫 Configuration	Plan Price	Flat Slab Usage Variable	•	Threshold Pricing Acted On Usage Variable	•	
t3 Business	99	Select	•	Select	•	
Events	Line Items					
Notifications		Slab Rates				
🖺 Workflow	Line items not yet add	Start Value	End Value	Cost Factor (\$)		
Reporting		+ Add				
🎢 AddOn						
Monitor					🖺 Save Close	
≡ ©						

Step 2: Fill the form for the given fields

Name: Name of the Metered Component

Description: Description for the Metered Component

**Factor Type:** Choose **"Flat"** for flat billing (Refer <u>here</u>) and "**Each"** for charging against each consumption of the metered component.

**Calculation Type:** Choose **"Step Pricing"** to calculate against each line mentioned (Refer <u>here</u>) and **"Threshold Pricing"** for charging against specific line item.

Slab Variable Name: Choose the appropriate Metering Variable

**Acted on Usage Variable:** Choose the appropriate Metering Variable (This is used in case if you want to calculate year to value of the metered component)



★ Cello <b>SaaS</b>					
🛱 My Account	💿 Manage Price	Manage Line Item			×
Subscription	Plan Details <b>(Refer</b> e			Description	
嶜 Tenant	Plan Name*	User		Flat Charge for User Component	le.
್ಕಿ Access Control	Basic	Factor Type		Calculation Type	
📽 Configuration	Plan Price	Flat Slab Usage Variable	-	Threshold Pricing Acted On Usage Variable	•
t⊐ Business Events		User	•	User	•
Notifications	Line Items	Slab Rates			
🚍 Workflow	Line items not yet add	Start Value	End Value	Cost Factor (\$)	
🚳 Reporting		1	5	10	Ü
🎢 AddOn		+ Add			
Monitor					
≡ 0				巴 Sa	ve Close

#### Step 3: Save & Close

**Note:** When you create a pricing plan as described above for the "User" components, the user will be charged \$10 for consuming 1 to 5 users for the chosen frequency.

# 3.2.1.2 How does Cello will block the user once the customer reach the threshold

To Create a block billing model Subscription plan, the administrator have to set the usage threshold while creating the Subscription plan (Refer the below Screenshot).

When the customer subscribes to a Subscription plan which has usage limitation and when the customer exceeds the threshold they will receive the following exception from the Cello Metering Engine, which has to be captured by the application component and display the formatted message to the end customer.

```
Usage is exceeded. Usage Code: {0}, Amount: {1}, TenantId: {2}
E.g. (Formatted Message)
The Number of {0} allowed for the Silver Package is exceeded. You can upgrade to Gold
Plan to add more {0}.
```



#### **Code Snippet**

```
catch (LicenseLimitException licenseLimitException)
{
    // cellohelp:exceptionhandling
    ExceptionService.HandleException(licenseLimitException, null);
    throw new ProjectManagementException("Project usage limit was exceeded.",
    licenseLimitException);
}
```

★ CelloSaaS = Change Tenant ad	dmin@company.com 🔻	÷
ManageTenant ManageTenantLicense		*
(2) Subscription User		
Tenant I ManageAllUser ManageUser		
Access Control Set Usage Maximum Capacity		
Configuration O Assignable usage should be less than or equal to assigned usage		
Assigned Usage Assignable Usage		
Events Billing No Usage Available.		
Votifications BillingInvoiceAmount (Maximum: 0)		
0		
BillingInvoiceYTD (Maximum: 0)		
€ Reporting		
1 User		
X AddOn     User (Maximum: 0)		
Monitor		E
Set the maximum usage allowed for each metered component	Save Cancel	

### 3.3 Metered Billing

Metered billing, or usage-based billing, usually may or may not involve a fixed fee. Unlike Block model, Metered Billing model allows the customer to access the application without any limitation. But each transaction will be metered and charged as per the unit cost.

Note that Metered billing can also provide bundled usage, i.e \$ 99 for limited usage and beyond that that customer has to pay what he additional used for.



### 3.3.1.1 How to configure Metered Billing with Bundled usage

Let's assume, a SaaS based CRM Provider whose subscription plans based on number of Users. Hence they have come up with 3 plans like shown below

Silver - \$ 99	Gold -\$150	Platinum - \$200
3 Users	5 Users	10 Users
Beyond 3 Users additional 1 user costs \$50	Beyond 3 Users additional 1 user costs \$40	Beyond 3 Users additional 1 user costs \$30

Let us see how to configure this billing model using Cello Billing Engine in a step by Step format.

**Step1:** Navigate to Subscription >> Manage Subscriptions and Create Subscription Plan for Basic Plan with User limit as "3"

\star Cello <b>SaaS</b>				≓ Change Tenant	admin@company.com 👻 🧯	
🛍 My Account	□ ManageTenant ☑ SelfTenantAdministrator	ManageTenantLicense Self Upgrade Subscription Package				*
Subscription	User					
'참 Tenant	ManageAllUser	🖉 ManageUser				
ရ Access Control	Set Usage Maximum Capacity					
📽 Configuration	Assignable usage should be less than or	equal to assigned usage				
13 Business	Assigned Usage		Assignable Usage			
Events	Billing		No Usage Available.			
Notifications	BillingInvoiceAmount (Maximum: 0)					
S Workflow	0 BillingInvoiceYTD (Maximum: 0)		_			
Reporting						h
✗ AddOn	User (Maximum: 0)		-			
Monitor	0					н
<b>≡</b> ©	Set "0" to all the meterable	e components to allow unlimited access			Bave Cancel	

Step2: Navigate to Subscription List pages

Step 3: Click on Manage Pricing Plans icon against the Basic Subscription Plan. Refer the below Image



CelloSa	aS							a	lmin@company.com 👻	≓ Change Tenant
My Account	Subscription	Tenant		Configuration	<b>E</b> usiness Events	Notifications	Workflow	Reporting	AddOn Monitor	
Package Manag	gement							Tenant	Companyiii	• Add
Package Distr	ribution				Search		GO			
					Name			Trial Period	Manage Price Plans	Edit
		Package Dist	ibution Stats		Basic Pac	-		15	F	٦
Evaluation	Package - 7.69 %		Str	arter Package - 12.82 %		n Package		30	F	ß
Rese	ller Plan - 7.69 %				Limited			2	p	ß
			Premium Reseller F			0	Jr.	<b>∠</b>		
Premium	Premium Package - 7.69 %				Starter Pa			0	F.	l d
						Pav Package		0	<i>F</i>	
Use and Pay P	Package - 17.95 %		Ва	sic Package - 46.15 %	Show 1	0 💌 entries Showi	ng 1 to 7 of 7 er	itries		H O 1 O H
	er Package 📕 Basic Paci ation Package	kage 📕 Use and P	ay Package 📕 Premium Pa	ckage 📕 Reseller Plan						
v 4.3.2.0								Co	pyright © 2013 by techcello.com	m All Rights Reserved.

Step3: Click on Add Price Plan and fill the fields

Plan Name: Name of the Pricing Plan

Plan Description: Friendly description of the Pricing plan

Plan Price: \$99

Frequency: Choose an appropriate Billing Frequency for the Subscription Plan

Line Items: Setup the Line Items as shown below

### 3.3.1.1 How to Add Line Items

Step 1: Click on Add (Refer the below Image)



\star Cello <b>SaaS</b>					×	<b>≓</b> Change
🛍 My Account	🕤 Manage Price	Manage Line Item			X	
Subscription	Plan Details <b>(Refer</b> e	Name *		Description		
皆 Tenant	Plan Name* Basic				h	
♣ Access Control	Dasic	Factor Type	•	Calculation Type Threshold Pricing	•	
📽 Configuration	Plan Price 99	Slab Usage Variable		Acted On Usage Variable		
13 Business Events		Select	•	Select	•	
Notifications	Line Items	Slab Rates				_
🛢 Workflow	Line items not yet add	Start Value	End Value	Cost Factor (\$)		
🍘 Reporting		+ Add				
🎢 AddOn						
Monitor					Save Close	
≡ ©						

Step 2: Fill the form for the given variables

Name: Name of the Metered Component e.g. User Metering

Description: Description for the Metered Component

Factor Type: Choose "Each" for charging against each consumption of the "User" component.

Calculation Type: Choose "Threshold Pricing" for charging against specific line item.

Slab Variable Name: Choose the appropriate Metering Variable

**Acted on Usage Variable:** Choose the appropriate Metering Variable (This is used in case if you want to calculate year to value of the metered component)



★ Cello <b>SaaS</b>		Manage Line It	em			×	≓ Change Tenant	admin@company.com 🔻 🔺
🛍 My Account	🕢 Manage Price	Name *		D	escription			Save Cancel
Subscription	Plan Details (Refere	User			User Component Charging			
첄 Tenant	Plan Name*	Factor Type		Ci	alculation Type			
Access Control	Basic	Each	-		Threshold Pricing	•		
🌣 Configuration	Plan Price 99	Slab Usage Variab			tted On Usage Variable User	•		•
t∓ Business Events		Slab Rates	For the first 3 User - \$ 0 becaus	e it will c	harged as bundled cost			
Notifications	Lin Basic Cost	Start Value	End Value		Cost Factor (\$)			+ Add
😂 Workflow	Line items not yet a 3	) 1	3		0	<b>İ</b>		
∰ Reporting		4			50	Ü		
🎢 AddOn		+ Add	Set Exceeded cost here e.g for	anything	beyond 4 will be charged as	s \$50		
Monitor								
ە						Save Close		

# 4 Hybrid Billing (Combination of Block Billing, Metered Billing)

Hybrid billing refers to combination of Block Billing Model & Metered billing model.

## 5 Bundled Usage

It refers to the default usage access that comes with a fixed cost. Generally when SaaS providers decide on creating subscription plans, they would provide some default usage for a fixed cost. This default usage access is known as Bundled Usage.

Refer the below screenshot.



Maven \$249.mg	<b>Guru</b> \$79, <sub>mo</sub>	Expert \$39 mo	Free	
FOR LARGER TEAMS	FOR SMALL TEAMS	FOR INDIVIDUALS		
12 Project Creators	3 Project Creators	1 Project Creator	1 Project Creator	
500GB Storage	100GB Storage	20GB Storage	500 MB Storage	
Unlimited Projects	Unlimited Projects	Unlimited Projects	3 Active Projects	
Unlimited Participants	ommed Projects	Unlimited Participants	Unlimited Participants	
Unlimited Invoicing	Unlimited Participants	Unlimited Invoicing	1 Invoice Per Project	
Custom Branding	Unlimited Invoicing	Custom Branding		
Account User Administration	Custom Branding			
Sign Up	Account User Administration	Sign Up	Sign Up	

### 5.1 How to configure bundled usage

Bundled usage refers to a subscription plan which is configured with some free usage by default for a given cost

e.g.

A Subscription plan which lets you to access

5 - Users

10- Projects

100mb – Disk Space etc

Beyond this limit, the customer may or may not be allowed to use the application; such a model is referred as bundled usage.

### 6 Taxing

TechCello automates the process of applying tax components in the Invoices. TechCello supports application of common taxes (for all tenants) as well as Tenant Specific Taxes. Using common tax policies, Product Owners can simply set the general taxes once and have it applied for the entire tenants invoice globally for both post-paid billing.

Note:



- 1. Cello takes the tax input value in % and calculates the tax based on the invoice cost and applies the same on the final invoice.
- 2. Default Taxes are applied to all the Tenants in the system (exempted only when the Tenant has its own Tax rules defined while on boarding).

### 6.1 Configure Global Tax Rates

Navigate to Admin >> Subscription >> Tax Rates

Access Control Configuration Bus		eporting Monitor						
Setup Default Tax Rates								
me	Description	Percentage Order						
AT 4%	VAT 4%	4 % 0						
		,						

#### Setup Default Rates

Click on Add button to add as many line items as the product needed.

CelloSa	aaS							admin@compar	iy.com ▼   ∓	± Change	Tenan
My Account	Subscription	Tenant	Access Control	Configuration	Business Events	Notifications	Workflow	Reporting	Monitor		
Setup Default	Tax Rates								Ca	incel 🛛 🖪	a Save
Description		_	Name		Descriptio	on		Perce	ntage (	Order	
Default taxes			VAT 4%		VAT 4%				4 %	0	Û
			CST 3%		CST 3%				3%	1	Û
			PST 5%		PST 5%				5 %	2	Û
			EST 1%		EST 1%				1%	3	Û

#### Setup Default Rates

### 6.2 Tax Ordinals

While adding taxes, specify the order in which the taxes should be applied (refer the above screen). To understand the significance of the ordinals refer the below example.

With reference to the above Screenshot, the invoice and tax calculation will be as follows,



		Significance of Ordinals
Base Subscription Cost (Basic Plan)	99\$	
	,	
Total	99\$	
		0 – When the ordinal set as , the tax calculation will
Tax - 4%	3.96 \$	be simply based on the base cost i.e. 99\$
Total (Base Cost + Vat)	102.96\$	
		1 – When set to 1 refers the cumulative total of
		base cost + 0 <sup>th</sup> ordinal cost and calculates the tax
007 004	2.00	based on the accumulated number.
CST -3%	3.08	i.e. 102.96
Total (Base Cost + Vat + CST)	106.04	
		2 – When set to 2 the tax will be calculated on the cumulative total of base cost + $0^{th}$ ordinal cost + $1^{st}$ Ordinal cost
PST -5%	5.30	i.e. 102.96
P31-3%	5.50	1.e. 102.90
Total (Base Cost + Vat + CST + PST)	111.34	
		3 – When set to 3 the tax will be calculated on the
		cumulative total of base cost + $0^{th}$ ordinal cost + $1^{st}$
		Ordinal cost + 2 <sup>nd</sup> Ordinal cost
EST -1%	1.11	i.e. 102.96
Total (Base Cost + Vat + CST + PST + EST)	111.34	
Grand Total	111.34\$	

Once the General Tax is configured, whenever an invoice is generated by the Cello Billing Engine these General Tax components will be automatically applied as part of the invoice.

### 6.3 Configure Tenant Specific Tax

For Tenants for whom the general tax policies are not applicable can go for Tenant specific taxes when applicable, Ex: Assume if a tenant from Italy subscribes to a subscription plan, but if the product generally follows USA Taxing rules as general policy then it is recommended to set tenant specific tax policies.

Tenant specific Tax policies can be set while creating the Tenants via Tenant Management Module.



Navigate to Admin>> Manage Tenants >> Add Tenant

<b>CelloSaaS</b>				admin@	©company.com ▼   ≓ Change Tenant				
My Account Subscriptio		Control Configuration	Business Events Notification	s Workflow Repor					
Add Tenant					Cancel Save				
Tenant Details									
Tenant Code String*			Tenant Name*						
Description		10	Website						
URL			Tenant Types *	SMB	T				
Auto Debit			Data Partition *	Default	•				
Company Size *	-Select-	•							
Billing Address									
• If any field for Billing Address is f	illed in, the mandatory check v	ill be enforced.							
Address *			City*						
State *			Country *	Select Country	T				
Postal Code									
Contact Details									
If any field for Contact Details is	filled in, the mandatory check	will be enforced.							
First Name*			Last Name*						
Phone *			Fax						
Contact Email*			Country	Select	T				
Tenant Admin User Details									
First Name*			Last Name						
User Name*			Tenant Admin Email						
Package Settings									
Package*	Choose A Package	•	Price Plan	Choose a plan	•				
Subscription Start Date *	11/5/2013		Subscription End Date						
Trial End Date			Number of Users						
Tax Rate									
Description	Name		Description		Percentage Order				
Default taxes	VAT 4%		VAT 4%		4% 0 🔒				
					+ Add				
					Cancel Save				
v 4.3.1.0				Copyright @	2013 by techcello.com All Rights Reserved.				

#### Setup Tax Policies While creating a Tenant

**Note**: Tenant specific Tax Policies takes higher priority than General Tax Policies, hence General Taxes are voided.

If a tenant registers via the admin portal instead of Self sign-up process, the administrator can configure tenant level taxing and onboard the customer, but if the tenant opt for self-sign-up registration then the common taxing configured in the application will be applied for the customer for the first bill.



Later, if the administrator wants to apply Tenant level taxing for the customer, he/she can very well edit the customer details and update the taxing policies.

# 7 Billing Cycles/Frequency

The billing cycle is the period of time between billings. For instance in a monthly cycle, if the billing cycle starts on the 1st day of the month then it will end by 30<sup>th</sup> or 31<sup>st</sup> day of the month (depends on the calendar). During the billing cycle the product consumption charges are posted to the Tenant Invoice (based on the pricing plan, Refer <u>Pricing Plan</u>). At the end of the billing cycle, the tenant will be billed for all unpaid charges during the billing cycle.

#### Example

If a Subscriber, start an account on 1<sup>st</sup> May, his/her Billing Cycle would be between 1<sup>st</sup> May to 31<sup>st</sup> May, but if a Tenant starts an Account by 15<sup>th</sup> May, then the Billing Cycle would be between 15th May to 15<sup>st</sup> June.

If the product's billing cycle is 1<sup>st</sup> -30<sup>th</sup> but if a tenant subscribed on 15<sup>th</sup>, then the customer will only be invoiced for the 15 days and not for the entire month and for the forthcoming bills the product's general billing cycle will be followed.

There are 4 major billing cycles supported, they are

- 1. Monthly
- 2. Quarterly
- 3. Semi Annual
- 4. Annual

**Note:** Each subscription plan can follow any billing cycle. I.e. Subscription plan 1 – Monthly and Subscription plan 2 – Quarterly Billing

### 7.1 How to Configure Billing Cycle/Frequency

Step1: Navigate to Subscription >> Manage Subscriptions and Create Subscription Plans.

**Step2:** Click on Manage **Pricing Plans** icon against the newly created Subscription Plan. Refer the below Image



★ Cello <b>SaaS</b>					≓ Change Tena	nt admin@company.com <del>•</del>	ŵ
🛱 My Account	Package Management						ſ
Subscription	Search	GO!				+ Create	
嶜 Tenant							
-	Name	•	Trial Period	÷	Manage Price Plans	Edit	
ဇ Access Control	Basic			60	p.	C C	
🕫 Configuration	Premium			30	p.	Le la	
·•	Reseller Package			0	F.	L.	=
ta Business	Ultimate			0	p.	۷	
Events	Show 10 entries Showing 1 to 4 of 4 entries					K < 1 > H	
Notifications							
😫 Workflow	Package Distribution						
🚳 Reporting							
🎢 AddOn		Premium - 19.81 %					
Monitor							
≡ o				Ba	sic - 41.51 %		

#### Step3: Click on Add Price Plan and fill the fields

Manage Price Plans - Basic	🛱 Save Cancel
Plan Details	
Plan Name*	Plan Description
Plan Price 0 \$	Frequency* Monthly Monthly Quarterly
Line Items	Semianual Annual
Please save the price plan first to define the line items!	

Plan Name: Name of the Pricing Plan

Plan Description: Friendly description of the Pricing plan

**Plan Price**: Setup the base Cost of the subscription Plan. Fill "0" in case if you do not want to charge anything upfront.

Frequency: Choose the frequency of the billing

### 7.2 Billing Cycle and Free Trial Period



Product Owners can create subscriptions plans with or without free trial period; refer<u>Subscription</u> <u>Management</u>, for example when purchasing a basic package the tenant may get 15 Days free usage. Below Image shows the Invoice Period Calculation. Refer (<u>How to create Subscription Plans with Free Trial Period</u>.)



### 7.3 Billing Start Date

The day when the account is subscribed to a paid package is considered as the Billing Start Date for a tenant. For example, if an account holder subscribes to a Package which contains 1 month free trial period on May 1<sup>st</sup>, then the actual billing period starts only on June 1<sup>st</sup>; hence the billing Start date would be June 1<sup>st</sup>.

#### Scenarios

1. Monthly Subscription Plan with Trial 10 Days Free Trial Period



Imagine, a customer purchased a subscription plan with 10 days free trial period for about 99\$ on Jan 1st.So the invoice date for this customer would be Jan 10<sup>th</sup> and the invoice end date would be Feb 10<sup>th</sup> and the charge date would be 5 days from invoice end date.

2. Monthly Subscription Plan without Free Trial Period

Imagine, a customer purchased a subscription plan without free trial period for about 99\$ on Jan 1st.So the invoice date for this customer would be Jan 1st and the invoice end date would be Jan 30<sup>th</sup> and the charge date would be 5 days from invoice end date.

3. Upgrades & Downgrades

Billing Date will also be impacted when the Customer Upgrade or downgrade the subscriptions plans. The day when the customer upgrade/downgrade the package, the last subscribed date will be considered as the new billing date for the customer.

**Note:** Unlike post-paid billing, there is no fixed charge day or bill day in post-paid because customers can subscribe to the application at any point of time, hence in post-paid the billing day for any frequency will be calculated based on the date the customer purchases the paid version of the product.

In postpaid, the customer can subscribe on any day, but the billing date would be constant

### 7.4 Billing Charge Day

Billing Charge date denotes the day of the month on which the bill has to be generated.

To configure the Charge Day, Navigate to

Note: Both billing & charge date can change while upgrading/downgrading from one plan to another

### 7.5 How to De-Activate the Tenants?

TechCello will automatically de-activate the Tenant when the payment information is not updated by the Tenant before the account expires. If the account has valid credit card information the customer's account will remain active always irrespective of whether the Tenant pays the subscription cost or not.

But ISV/Product administrator can manually de-activate the account at any point of time by navigating to the Manage Tenants page.

Select the Tenant to open in Edit Mode and Click on De-Activate.



★ Cello <b>SaaS</b>							≓ Change	Tenant ad	min@company.co	om 🔻 🗯	1
🛱 My Account	lenant lype Without Payment			•		t Doesn't matter			,	<u>.</u>	1
	Account			•	Self Registere	d Doesn't matter			•	•	
Subscription	Has Overdue	Doesn't matter		•	Has Child Tenant	s Doesn't matter				•	
출 Tenant	Tenant Name	Search by tenant name						٩	Search Rese	t	
န Access Control									+ Creat	e	
📽 Configuration	Member since 2 m	onths	Basit - Basit				IOTAL USERS	ONLINE USERS	CHILD TENANTS	*	
	% http://marblesoft	.techcello.com	\$100			-	TOTAL BILLS (YTD)	REVENUE (YTD)	OVERDUE		
ta Business Events	Mike.s@marble1	.com					0	\$0	\$0		
	<b>69</b> +1-234-567-89	01	5 Mar, 14								
Notifications	Reseller NA										
르 Workflow	Sapien Cu	rsus LLC					TOTAL USERS	ONLINE USERS	CHILD TENANTS	=	
🚯 Reporting	Member since		Basic - Basic				100	0	0		
	% http://sapiencurs		\$100			_	TOTAL BILLS (YTD)	REVENUE (YTD) \$1,000	overdue \$13,000		
✗ AddOn	\$ s +1-603-316-79		19 Nov, 12		30, Apr, 14		1	\$1,000	φ15,000		
Monitor	SMB NA										
۵ ف	Mauris Lto	-	Premium - Plan 99				TOTAL USERS	ONLINE USERS	CHILD TENANTS		

\star Cello <b>SaaS</b>			≓ Ch Tenant admin@company.com ▼ 🔅
🛍 My Account	🕐 Edit Tenant		Save Deactivate License Cancel
Subscription	Tenant Details		
嶜 Tenant	Tenant Name*	Description	Click here to de-activate Tenant License
& Access Control	New Space		
📽 Configuration	Website	URL http://newspace.107.22.216.198:8080	
t3 Business Events	Tenant Types*	Auto Debit	
Notifications	Data Partition NA	Company Size	
🛢 Workflow	PDA	-Select-	
8 Reporting	Billing Address		
🎢 AddOn	If any field for Billing Address is filled in, the mandatory check will be enforced.		
Monitor	Address*	City*	
<b>≡</b> o	State*	Country*	

### 7.6 How to extend Tenant License?

When the customer exceeded the Trial period, the customer will not be allowed to access the system. In such cases, the ISV can login to the Admin portal and activate the License on request basis.



To Activate the License, Navigate to Manage Tenants Page and select the Tenant to Extend/Re-Activate the License.



### 8 Invoice Generation

An invoice is a statement which shows actual charges, tax, and payments altogether. When a subscription is created or renewed, the billing engine will sum the charges, discount or tax as appropriate, and send the invoice out for collection. The Application subscribers are notified of successful or failed invoice collection via email.



#### Note:

• Invoices will be generated for all the Account Holders irrespective of the status and subscription plan purchased



### 8.1 Raising the First Invoice for a Tenant

The Invoice generation process is common irrespective of the type of Billing Model you configure, but however it will differ a bit for Metered without Upfront Cost Model. This model is a pure Pay as you go model, because the customer will only pay what he has used for, hence the ISV will not charge anything upfront during the first month.



Customer			
Name	Acme Corp	Plan Name	Basic Plan
		Consumed End of the	
Month	Cost \$	month \$	Adjustment in \$
1	. 0	168	0
2	168	140	28
	Total Cost of last month-		
	Adjustment from previous bill		
3	140 -28 = 112 \$	210	
2	210	99	111
	Total Cost of last month-		
	Adjustment from previous bill		
Ľ	210-111 = 99 \$		

As per the above Calculation, AcmeCorp Subscribed to Metered without Upfront Cost Billing Model, Hence "0" \$ is invoiced on Subscription, by end of the month the total consumption was \$168, this cost was deducted as the second month bill on the 1<sup>st</sup> of second month, but by the end of the 2<sup>nd</sup> month the consumption was reduced to \$140, hence the adjustment of \$ 28 will be adjusted on the third month bill. This process of identifying the next month cost from the consumption of the current bill and the provision of adjustments will continue.

### 8.2 Components of Invoice

By default, an invoice document will contain the following information:

- 1. Product Logo
- 2. Product Owner Address
- 3. Tenant Address
- 4. Invoice Number
- 5. Tenant Billing Address
- 6. Charge Details
  - a. Flat cost or Pay as you go Cost<explain>
  - b. Tax



- c. Any other Additional Cost
- 7. Tax, Pervious Payment Made, Notes

CelloSaaS		IN	VOICI
Company			nber 05, 201 oice no <b>#12</b> 9 13 - 9/1/201
address state	Extensiv	ve Ente	rprise
United States - 12345 ↓ +1 (234) 56 89 90 ■ admin@company.com	Korea, Democratic F		
	🗹 cher	+۱۰ ry.hockman@te	114-534-768 echcello1.co
Details			
Item Name	Description		Amou
Starter Package - Starter Plan	Period: 8/1/2013 12:00 AM to 9/1/2013 12:00 AM		\$499.
	Sub <sup>-</sup>	Total	\$499
Taxes			
No tax components available!			
		Total	\$499
Payments			
<ol> <li>No payments made so far!</li> </ol>			

Sample Invoice

### 8.3 Invoice Status

Depends upon the stage of the invoices, it passes through the various statuses, they are

Current



An Invoice that are pending for collection. Application has not yet received payments for the current month invoices.

#### Unpaid

Invoices that attempted collection, but payment failed. These invoices will be retried automatically through the dunning process.

Paid

Successfully collected invoice.

### 8.3.1 How is the Invoice amount calculated for Block Billing Model

The invoice amount is generally calculated based on the cost of the Subscription Plan.(Refer the section "**Understanding Price Plans**" in <u>http://www.techcello.com/downloads/kb/4.3.1/how\_to\_cello\_billing.pdf</u>) opted by the Tenant including the general or Tenant level tax and Additional component if any,

Eg:

Base Subscription Cost (Basic Plan)	99\$
Total	99\$
Tax - 4%	3.96\$
Grand Total	102.96\$

Note: The grand total of 102.96 \$ will be charged upfront when the customer subscribe to this plan.

### 8.3.2 How is the Invoice amount calculated for Cumulative/Usage based Billing Model

There are 2 categories under Cumulative/usage based model. They are

- 1. Cumulative/Usage based with '0' upfront cost
- 2. Cumulative/Usage based with upfront cost

Cumulative/Usage based with '0' upfront cost



In this model the subscription plan will not contain any bundled usage and hence "0\$" will be levied on successful subscription to the package. This model can be called as "**Pure Pay as you go model**", in this model the Tenant will only be charged as and when he/she utilize the **meter-able features** with the cost defined for the particular component will be deducted based on the pro-rated cost instantly.

#### Assumption:

**Billing Cycle = Monthly** 

1 user consumption = 30\$

#### 1 Project = 15\$

Base Subscription Cost (Basic Plan)	0\$
2 Users consumption	30\$ * 2 Users = 60 \$
10 Projects consumption	15\$ * 10 Users = 150 \$
Tax - 4%	8.4\$
Grand Total	218.4\$

#### Cumulative/Usage based with upfront cost

In this model the subscription plan will be provided with bundled usage and hence tenant will be charged with some upfront cost. Once the tenant exceeds the bundled usage, the tenant will be further allowed to access the subscription without any limitation but he/she utilize the meter-able component, the cost defined for the particular component will be deducted based on the pro-rated cost instantly.

#### Assumption:

Billing Cycle = Monthly

Subscription Plan Name = Basic

Cost of Basic Plan = 99\$

Bundled Usage = 10 Users & 15 Projects

1 user consumption = 30\$

#### 1 Project = 15\$

Base Subscription Cost (Basic Plan)	99\$
Additional 2 Users consumption	30\$ * 2 Users = 60 \$
Additional 10 Projects consumption	15\$ * 10 Users = 150 \$
Tax - 4%	12.36\$



Grand Total	321.36\$

# 9 Understanding Pro-Ration (Auto Adjustments)

Pro-Ration is the process of identifying the lesser charge applied to compensate for lesser service.

For example, if you pay \$100 a month, but you canceled/upgrade/downgrade the service on the 20th of the month you only pay for those 20 days.... the cost per day is \$3.33 so your bill for 20 days would be only \$66.66 instead of \$100. It's prorated so you only pay for the service you received.

Financial pro-ration/adjustments are very tedious in nature and it's very crucial to maintain an error free and 100% accurate billing. Techcello automates the process of pro-ration by default which is very important in the billing and especially in the post-paid model.

Applying adjustments to billing could either increase or decrease the balance due on the subscription. An adjustment does not actually return any funds to the customer's credit card or go through the payment gateway instead it can only be applied on the upcoming billings.

### 9.1 Proration Category

Proration can happen in two major scenarios, they are

- 1. Pay-as-you-go model in post-paid
- 2. Subscriptions Upgrade/Downgrade

### 9.1.1 Pro-Ration/Adjustment in Pay-as-you-go Model

In the cumulative billing, where the cost of the price is generally floating and there may/may not be fixed price, so adjustment plays a vital role. Looking at the chart given <u>here</u>, during the first month on subscribing to plan, a fixed cost was charged from the customer, but the customer has exceeded the usage and used till 168 \$, hence 168 \$ was charged as post-paid in the beginning of the month, but during the end of the 2<sup>nd</sup> month the usage has reduced to 110 \$, henceforth an adjustment has to be made by deducting

Post-Paid cost – previous month adjustment = Current month Payable

Let's look at the adjustments in detail with a scenario.



#### Assumption:

1 Additional User cost = 30 \$ per month (monthly frequency)

#### Per Day Pro-ration:

30 \$ /30 Days = 1 \$ per day

#### User Cost calculation based on the Date of transaction

(Actual cost of the chargeable component per billing Cycle –(Cost per month –per Day Cost))

If a user is added on 1<sup>st</sup> Day of the month, 30\$ will be deducted instantly

If a user is added on 2<sup>nd</sup> Day of the month, 29\$ will be deducted instantly

If a user is added on 3<sup>rd</sup> Day of the month, 28\$ will be deducted instantly

This is how the cost of the Chargeable component will be charged, similarly when the user de-activate or delete the chargeable component, the cost charged for that particular user will be credited back as an adjustment to the account which will be adjusted on the upcoming bills.

For example when deleting the 1<sup>st</sup> user added on 1<sup>st</sup> of the month on 5<sup>th</sup> of the same month, the proration will be calculated as follows

Total no of days (Usage of the User) = 5 Days

Cost per Day = 1 \$

Total Cost per user for 5 Days = 1 \* 5 = 5\$

So the adjustment against this user will be

30\$ -5\$ = 25 \$ will be posted as adjustment into the respective user account.

Adjustments applied on the billings can be viewed on the individual invoices of the customer.

Refer <u>here</u> to know about the manual adjustments in the invoice.

Note: Proration is not only limited for days but it will also consider Hours & minutes level.



### 9.1.2 Pro-Ration during Upgrade & Downgrade

Like Pro-ration applied based on the consumption date on a given meter-able components, Techcello also employs Pro-ration when upgrading and downgrading the packages. One of the value propositions of SaaS model is its flexibility to allow customers to upgrade/downgrade the application at any point of time.

Logically, when the Tenant upgrade and downgrade their subscription plans, the invoice must also consider the changes and raise the bills accordingly. TechCello Billing management system takes care of automated customer communications, proration of payments, as well as the management of billing for each customer according to their plan.

Let us look at a few examples on how proration is determined.

#### **Proration Steps**

**Step 1:** Determine the total cost for the period and the number of days in that Billing Cycle. For instance, if the Tenant's bill is \$200 monthly, Cello billing engine takes the number of days in that particular month. Use 30 days in the month of June, for an example.

**Step 2:** Divide the total fee for the period by the number of days in the month. In this example the result is \$200 divided by 30, or \$6.67 per day.

**Step 3:** Determine how many days in that period the customer didn't use the service. Say, for example, the customer cancelled the service after 16 days of use in the previous month --- that means he requires a service credit for 14 days.

**Step 4:** Multiply the number of days the customer did not use the service by the per-day prorated rate. So in this example, that is 14 days times \$6.67, or \$93.38.

**Step 5:** Add a line to the service invoice crediting this fee to the customer (for instance, "-93.38"). Deduct it from the full charge for the month, which is \$200, to determine the final invoice balance for the previous month, of \$106.62.

**Step 6:** Notates the invoice with a description of the deduction to clarify the purpose of the credit. For instance, "Prorated credit for 14 days --- June 17-30."

#### **Example Scenarios**

### Scenario 1: Upgrading a plan with proration



Description	Old Plan	Upgraded To
Subscription Plan Name	Basic	Advanced
Billing Cycle	Monthly	Monthly
Cost of Basic Plan	99\$	150\$
Bundled Usage	10 Users & 30 Projects	25 Users & 50 Projects
Additional Cost per user	30\$	20\$
Per Day charge for User	30 / 30 = 1  per day	\$ 20/30 =\$ .66 per day
Additional Cost per Project	15\$	12
Per Day charge for Project	15 / 30 =  .5 per day	\$ 12/30 =\$ .4 per day
Subscription purchased on	1st Jun 2013	15 <sup>th</sup> June 2013
Billing Period	1 Jun 2013 to 1 July 2013	15th Jun 2013 to 15 July 2013
Plan used period	15 Days i.e. 1 Jun 2013 to 15 June 2013	15 Days i.e. 15 Jun 2013 to 1 July 2013
Total Consumption till 15 days apart from bundled package	5 Users – added on 10 <sup>th</sup> June 10 Packages – added on 12 <sup>th</sup> June	

#### **Pro-ration Calculation**

As per the above chart the Customer has upgraded the plan on 15<sup>th</sup> of June but by June 10th the customer has already exceeded the bundled usage and has used

- 5 additional users
- additional projects



Usage Parameters	Cost	Total
Bundled Usage	99\$	99\$
User added on 10 <sup>th</sup> june	Per Cost of User * No of Days remaining in the cycle = \$ 1* 20 = \$ 20	20\$
Project added on 12 <sup>th</sup> june	Per Cost of Project * No of Days remaining in the cycle = \$ .5* 18 = \$1.5	9\$
Grand Total		128 \$ (Excluding Tax)

On upgrading/downgrading the subscription plan, the customer will be deducted with the new subscription cost instantly minus any adjustments needs to be done from the previous billing cycle. For example in the above scenario where the Tenant upgrades from basic plan to advanced plan on 15<sup>th</sup> june, hence the cost of Advanced plan will be charged on the same day and time along with the adjustments.

### 9.1.3 Scenario 2: Pro-rata on account cancelation (Customer Exit)<change>

Amount for Period Used: 15 days used x \$3.3/day
Amount for Period Used: 15 days used x \$3.3/day
Amount for Period Used: 15 days used x \$3.3/day

**Note:** TechCello **doesn't credit back the charges** if you or the customer decided to end the account early during the billing period.

In the event of upgrading/downgrading the subscription plans, email notification is automatically sent from the billing service. To change or update the email content, navigate to Admin >> Notifications>> Content Template >> look for "Tenant Subscription Changed Mail" and update the content.



Edit Template Details	5
Locale Name	en
Template*	B       I       U       abe       ×.       ײ       T- rT- HI-       Tag       Ty       III       III       III       IIII       IIIII       IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

### 9.2 Invoice Manual Adjustments

There are chances some customers willing to pay offline instead of Online or auto debit. In such cases, the product administrator or the billing admin can manually mark the payment as received. Another use case for the manual adjustments is for refund cases, CelloSaaS billing Service doesn't facilitates to process refund money back to the customers, and instead the application administrator can make adjustments manually in the invoices once it is generated.

Adjustments can either be a fixed increase (debit) or decrease (credit) to the invoice. The details of a manual adjustment such as the amount, adjustment type and reason code are permanently stored within the Cello database. Any manual adjustments that exist for an invoice at the time the order is priced will always be applied. All manual adjustments are created as transient repository items and it is applicable only for the particular Invoice. Subsequent Invoice processing will not have any impact on the earlier manual adjustments.

**Note**: Email notifications will not be sent by default in the event of manual payments, but it can be programmed to send notifications on Manual payments.

### 9.2.1 How to make Adjustments in Invoice

Navigate to Admin >> Client Bills>>Select the Invoice>> Click on Edit



CelloSaaS	5								admin@compan	y.com ▼   ;	<b>⇒</b> Chang	e Tenant
My Account Su	<b>1</b> bscription	Tenant	Access Control	Configuratio	on Busine	ess Events	Notification	s Workflow	Reporting	<b>O</b> Monitor		
Manage Child Bills												
Tenant: Acme Corp		Q Search										
Account Summary												
Tenant Name	Acme Corp	🖬 belva.maje	wski@techcello1.com	<b>\$</b> +1-903-766-2	2159			Tot	al Bills	90		
Package Q View History	Use and Pa	y Package						Tot	al Amount	\$12,5	56.76	
Price Plan	Use & Pay F	Plan						Tot	al Paid	\$0.00	)	
Subscription Period	11/7/2013	4:50 AM						Ove	rdue Amount	\$12,5	56.76	
Current Bill Statem	ent								-	🖋 Edit 🛛 🔊 Vie	ew OD	ownload
Previous Balance	Invoid	e No#	Bill Period		Invoice I	Date	Bill Amount	Total Amount	Payable	D	ue Date	
\$12,556.76	1754		11/1/2013 - 12/1/20	13	11/14/20	13	\$34.99	\$12,591.75		13	2/5/2018	
Current Bill Charge	Details					Previous	Bills					
Item Name		Description			Amount	Invoice No	# Bill Perio	d	Amount	Paid	Edit	View
Use and Pay Package - U	Jse & Pay Plan	Period: 11/7/2	013 4:50 AM to 12/1/2	013 12:00 AM	\$0.00	1727	10/1/201	3 - 11/1/2013	\$154.96	\$0.00	ø	۲
BillingInvoiceYTD		BillingInvoiceY	D		\$0.00	1702	9/1/2013	- 10/1/2013	\$154.96	\$0.00	ø	۲
Basic Package - Basic Pla	an	Period: 11/1/2	013 12:00 AM to 11/7	2013 4:50 AM	\$30.80	342	8/1/2013	- 9/1/2013	\$149.00	\$0.00	ø	۲

#### **Invoice** Page

- 1. Select the particular Tenant from the Tenant List drop down.
- 2. Look for the "Current Bill Statement" container
- 3. Click on the "Edit" icon on top of the container
- 4. Clicking on "Edit" will open the invoice in edit mode, refer the below screenshot





#### **Edit Invoice (Manual Adjustments)**

- 5. Update the Item Name, Description and Adjustment value (in usd \$\$).
- 6. Click on Save.
- 7. Once the Manual adjustment successfully updated, the invoice page will look like below.



Subscription Tenant Access Control Configuration Business Events Notifications Workflow Reporting Mor	Subscription       Tend       Access Control       Configuration       Business Events       Notifications       Workfor       Reporting       Access Control       Cells/2       Call       Call <th>Subscription       Tend       Access Gentral       Configuration       Baskness Events       Notifications       Note (No       Reporting       Reporting</th> <th>S</th> <th></th> <th></th> <th>admin@company.com •</th>	Subscription       Tend       Access Gentral       Configuration       Baskness Events       Notifications       Note (No       Reporting       Reporting	S			admin@company.com •
<page-header><ul> <li>A constraint of the straint of the s</li></ul></page-header>	<page-header> <ul> <li>Receive a set of the se</li></ul></page-header>	<page-header><ul> <li>Celosas</li> <li>Consas</li> <li>Consas<th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th></li></ul></page-header>				
<text><text><text><text><text><text><text><text><text></text></text></text></text></text></text></text></text></text>	<text><text><text><text><text><text><text><text><text></text></text></text></text></text></text></text></text></text>	<text><text><text><text><text><text><text><text><text><text></text></text></text></text></text></text></text></text></text></text>				
<text><text><text><text><text><text><text><text><text></text></text></text></text></text></text></text></text></text>	<text><text><text><text><text><text><text><text><text></text></text></text></text></text></text></text></text></text>	<text><text><text><text><text><text><text><text><text><text></text></text></text></text></text></text></text></text></text></text>				
<text><text><text><text><text><text><text></text></text></text></text></text></text></text>	<text><text><text><text><text><text><text><text></text></text></text></text></text></text></text></text>	<text><text><text><text><text><text><text><text></text></text></text></text></text></text></text></text>		CelloSaaS		INVOICE
adverses       States       CACEMCING         untend states = 12345       Adverses       States         id = (124) 56 88 90       Adverses       Adverses         id = dannik company.com       Adverses       Adverses       Adverses         id = dannid	Adverse state unter de se se se se se par per de de se par per de de se par per de de se par de	advasts       States       Advasts         initial costs in 12345       Advasts       States         initial costs initial costs       Advasts       States         initial costs       Advasts       Advasts         initial costs       Advasts       Advasts       Advasts         initial costs       Advasts       Advasts       Advasts       Advasts         initial costs       Advasts       Advasts       Advasts       Advasts       Advasts         initial costs       Advasts       Advasts       Advasts       Advasts       Advasts       Advasts       Advasts         initial costs       Advasts       Advasts       Advasts       Advasts       Advasts       Advasts       Advasts       Advasts <td< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></td<>				
stree       Actine Corport         United states + 12345       Actine 2000         if < 1(24) 56 86 90	sine Academy of the service used. Peake make payment at your earliest conventions and on of the service used. Peake make payment at your earliest conventions and on of the service used. Peake make payment at your earliest conventions and on on the service used. Peake make payment at your earliest conventions and on on the service used. Peake make payment at your earliest conventions and on on the service used. Peake make payment at your earliest conventions and on on the service used. Peake make payment at your earliest conventions and on on the service used. Peake make payment at your earliest conventions and on on the service used. Peake make payment at your earliest conventions and on the service used. Peake make payment at your earliest conventions and on the service used. Peake make payment at your earliest conventions and on the service used. Peake make payment at your earliest conventions and on the service used. Peake make payment at your earliest conventions and on the service used. Peake make payment at your earliest conventions and on the service used. Peake make payment at your earliest conventions and on the service used. Peake make payment at your earliest conventions and on the service used. Peake make payment at your earliest conventions and on the service used. Peake make payment at your earliest conventions and on the service used. Peake make payment at your earliest conventions and on the service used. Peake make payment at your earliest conventions and the service used. Peake make payment at your earliest and the service used. Peaked paiked paik	site ACMC ACC ACC ACC ACC ACC ACC ACC ACC AC			Period:11	
Let (23) 56 89 90       Sing 2024 - 2335         Let (23) 56 89 90       Let - 24 - 26 - 26 - 26 - 26 - 26 - 26 - 26	Let (23) 56 89 90       Site grant and si	Let (23) 56 89 0       State (23:35)         Implementation       Let (23) 56 89 0         Implementation       Anome         Implementation       Implementation         Implementation       Implementation         Implementation			A	cme Corp
Carr (231) Str B30       Qatr - 2157         Se dminingcompany.com       Ls - 903-766-2159         Carr Carls       E beta: majowskildetchedlol.com         Term Name       Description       Amount         Lise and Pay Package - Use & Pay Plan       Period: 11/7/2013 4:50 AM to 12/1/2013 1:00 AM       50.00         Billinginvoice/TD       Dialinginvoice/TD       Gatr - 2157         Basic Package - Basic Plan       Period: 11/7/2013 4:50 AM to 12/1/2013 1:00 AM       50.00         Drevious Adjustments       Orison       Aits         Previous Adjustments       Orison       Aits         Star Carls       Sub Total       51.50         Carls       Sub Total       50.01         Tax Total       50.15       51.51         Star Stard       Stard       51.51         Stard Total       51.50       51.51         Stard Total       50.05       51.51         Stard Total       50.05       51.51         Card Total       51.51       51.51         Stard Total       51.51       51.51         Card Total       51.51       51.51         Opments       Stard Total       51.50         Notes       Stard total       51.51         Pa	Carr - 2137       Qarr - 2137         Seminatic company.com       La - 302.762.153         Carr - 2137       Carr - 2137         Carr - 2137       C	C+1 (23) 56 89 0       (gar-2157)         B admin@company.com       £-1 938.766.2159         Celais       (max may existiffercheellol.com)         Memory company.com       Amount         New and Pay Package - Use & Pay Plan       Period: 11/7/2013 4.50 AM to 12/1/2013 12.00 AM         Billinginvoice/TD       (biage)         Billinginvoice/TD       (biage) <td></td> <td>United States - 12345</td> <td></td> <td></td>		United States - 12345		
Detains Term Name Description Amount Description Predict: 11/1/2013 4:50 AM to 12/1/2013 1:20 AM Description Predict: 11/1/2013 4:50 AM to 12/1/2013 1:20 AM Description Description	Details       Amount         Term Name       Description       Amount         Use and Pay Package - Use & Pay Plan       Pericit: 11/1/2013 4:50 AM to 12/1/2013 1:20 AM       Mount         Billinginvoice/TD       Usage:       Billinginvoice/TD:       Oute         Billinginvoice/TD:       O utage:       Oute To Control       Oute         Previous Adjustments       Previous Month Cost Adjustments       Osto       Osto         Details       Previous Month Cost Adjustments       Osto       Osto         Not Tak       Cast Static       Static       Static       Osto         Description       Amount       Osto       Osto       Osto       Osto       Osto         Description       Cast Static       Previous Month Cost Adjustments       Osto	<page-header>Details Term Name Description Amount Case and Pay Package - Use &amp; Pay Plan Reind: 11/1/2013 4:50 AM to 12/1/2013 1:20 AM to 12/1/2013 1:00 AM Case and Pay Package - Use &amp; Pay Plan Reind: 11/1/2013 4:50 AM to 12/1/2013 4:50 AM to 12/1/2013 4:50 AM Case and Pay Package - Use &amp; Pay Plan Reind: 11/1/2013 1:200 AM to 11/1/2013 4:50 AM Previous Adjustments 0:100 Case and Pay Package - Use &amp; Pay Plan Reind: 11/1/2013 1:200 AM to 11/1/2013 4:50 AM Terevious Adjustments 0:100 Case and Pay Package - Use &amp; Pay Plan Reind: 11/1/2013 1:200 AM to 11/1/2013 4:50 AM Previous Adjustments 0:100 Case and Case and Plan Reind: 11/1/2013 1:200 AM to 11/1/2013 4:50 AM Terevious Adjustments 0:100 Case and Case and Plan Reind: 11/1/2013 1:200 AM to 11/1/2013 4:50 AM Terevious Adjustments 0:100 Case and Case and Plan Reind: 11/1/2013 1:200 AM to 11/1/2013 4:50 AM Terevious Adjustments 0:100 Case and Case and Plan Reind: 11/1/2013 1:200 AM to 11/1/2013 4:50 AM Terevious Adjustments 0:100 Case and Case and Plan Reind: 11/1/2013 1:200 AM to 11/1/2013 4:50 AM Terevious Adjustments 0:100 Case and Case and Plan Reind: 11/1/2013 1:200 AM to 11/1/2013 4:50 AM Terevious Adjustments 0:100 Case and Case and Case and Reind: 11/1/2013 1:200 AM to 11/1/2013 4:50 AM Terevious Adjustments 0:100 Case and Case and Case and Reind: 11/1/2013 1:200 AM to 11/1/2013 4:50 AM Terevious Adjustments 0:100 Case and Case and Cas</page-header>				
Details       Memory and Pay Package - Use & Pay Pan       Description       Amount         Use and Pay Package - Use & Pay Pan       Period: 11/7/2013 4:50 AM to 12/1/2013 12:00 AM       50.00         BillinginvoiceYTD       Usage:       BillinginvoiceYTD: 0 unit       50.00         Basic Package - Basic Plan       Period: 11/1/2013 12:00 AM to 11/7/2013 4:50 AM       50.00         Period: 11/1/2013 12:00 AM to 11/7/2013 4:50 AM       50.00         DigniprivaticeYTD       Usage:       615.00         DigniprivaticeYTD       Period: 11/1/2013 1:2:00 AM to 11/7/2013 4:50 AM       50.00         DigniprivaticeYTD       Period: 11/1/2013 1:2:00 AM to 11/7/2013 4:50 AM       50.00         DigniprivaticeYTD       Period: 11/1/2013 1:2:00 AM to 11/7/2013 4:50 AM       50.00         DigniprivaticeYTD       Period: 11/1/2013 1:2:00 AM to 11/7/2013 4:50 AM       50.00         DigniprivaticeYTD       Period: 11/1/2013 1:2:00 AM to 11/7/2013 4:50 AM       50.00         DigniprivaticeYTD       Period: 11/1/2013 1:2:00 AM to 11/7/2013 4:50 AM       50.00         DigniprivaticeYTD       Period: 11/7       Period: 11/7       S0.00         State       Period: 11/7       Period: 11/7       S0.00         State       Period: 11/7       S0.00       S0.00         State       Period: 11/7       S0.00 <td>Details       Memory Package - Use &amp; Pay Plan       Description       Amount         Use and Pay Package - Use &amp; Pay Plan       Period: 11/7/2013 4:50 AM to 12/1/2013 12:00 AM       S0.00         BillinginvoiceYTD       Usage:       BillinginvoiceYTD: 0 unit       S0.00         Description       Period: 11/1/2013 12:00 AM to 11/7/2013 4:50 AM       S0.00         Period: 11/1/2013 12:00 AM to 11/7/2013 4:50 AM       S0.00         Description       Output       S0.00         Description       Output       S0.00         Description       Output       S0.00         Description       S0.00       S0.00         Description       Amount       S0.00         S00       Description       Amount         VAT 4%       VAT 4%       S0.63         S15 3%       S0.13       S0.13         Description       S0.13       S0.13         Description       S0.13       S0.13</td> <td>Details       Meriod: 11/7/2013 4:50 AM to 12/1/2013 12:00 AM       Amount         Use and Pay Package - Use &amp; Pay Plan       Period: 11/7/2013 4:50 AM to 12/1/2013 12:00 AM       60.00         BillinginvoiceYTD       BillinginvoiceYTD       0.00         Use and Pay Package - Basic Plan       Period: 11/1/2013 1:200 AM to 12/1/2013 1:50 AM       50.00         Previous Adjustments       Period: 11/1/2013 1:200 AM to 11/7/2013 4:50 AM       50.00         Demonstrain       Previous Month Cost Adjustments       515.00         Sub Total       \$15.00         New       VAT 4%       50.63         CST 3%       CST 3%       50.01         ST 5%       S0.63       50.10         St 76       EST 1%       50.10         Carl 1%       CST 3%       50.43         St 76       EST 1%       50.13         Carl 1%       EST 1%       50.18         Carl 1%       EST 1%       50.18         Carl 1%       EST 1%       50.18         Partotal       EST 1%       50.18         Carl 1%       EST 1%       50.18         Dial 10       EST 1%       50.18         Carl 10       EST 1%       50.18         Partotal       EST 1%       50.29     <!--</td--><td></td><td>adminecompany.com</td><td>🖼 belva maje</td><td></td></td>	Details       Memory Package - Use & Pay Plan       Description       Amount         Use and Pay Package - Use & Pay Plan       Period: 11/7/2013 4:50 AM to 12/1/2013 12:00 AM       S0.00         BillinginvoiceYTD       Usage:       BillinginvoiceYTD: 0 unit       S0.00         Description       Period: 11/1/2013 12:00 AM to 11/7/2013 4:50 AM       S0.00         Period: 11/1/2013 12:00 AM to 11/7/2013 4:50 AM       S0.00         Description       Output       S0.00         Description       Output       S0.00         Description       Output       S0.00         Description       S0.00       S0.00         Description       Amount       S0.00         S00       Description       Amount         VAT 4%       VAT 4%       S0.63         S15 3%       S0.13       S0.13         Description       S0.13       S0.13         Description       S0.13       S0.13	Details       Meriod: 11/7/2013 4:50 AM to 12/1/2013 12:00 AM       Amount         Use and Pay Package - Use & Pay Plan       Period: 11/7/2013 4:50 AM to 12/1/2013 12:00 AM       60.00         BillinginvoiceYTD       BillinginvoiceYTD       0.00         Use and Pay Package - Basic Plan       Period: 11/1/2013 1:200 AM to 12/1/2013 1:50 AM       50.00         Previous Adjustments       Period: 11/1/2013 1:200 AM to 11/7/2013 4:50 AM       50.00         Demonstrain       Previous Month Cost Adjustments       515.00         Sub Total       \$15.00         New       VAT 4%       50.63         CST 3%       CST 3%       50.01         ST 5%       S0.63       50.10         St 76       EST 1%       50.10         Carl 1%       CST 3%       50.43         St 76       EST 1%       50.13         Carl 1%       EST 1%       50.18         Carl 1%       EST 1%       50.18         Carl 1%       EST 1%       50.18         Partotal       EST 1%       50.18         Carl 1%       EST 1%       50.18         Dial 10       EST 1%       50.18         Carl 10       EST 1%       50.18         Partotal       EST 1%       50.29 </td <td></td> <td>adminecompany.com</td> <td>🖼 belva maje</td> <td></td>		adminecompany.com	🖼 belva maje	
Item Name       Description       Amount         Use and Pay Package - Use & Pay Plan       Period: 11/7/2013 4:50 AM to 12/1/2013 12:00 AM       50.00         BillinginvoiceYTD       BillinginvoiceYTD       50.00         Usage:       BillinginvoiceYTD       50.00         Basic Package - Basic Plan       Period: 11/1/2013 12:00 AM to 11/7/2013 4:50 AM       50.80         Previous Adjustments       -515.00       50.80         Texe       Sub Total       515.80         Texe       Nome       50.03         VAT 4%       50.63       50.49         P5 75%       CST 3%       50.49         P5 75%       S0.81       50.80         CST 3%       CST 3%       50.49         P5 75%       S0.81       50.81         E3 71%       EST 1%       50.18         Cat add 2.2.15       50.18       50.18         Total       51.79       50.18         Cat add 51.79       50.18       50.18         Dependent       Mount       50.80         Pay ments       Sub Total       51.9         Dependent       Sub Total       51.9         No payments made so far!       Sub Total       51.9         Notese       No	Item Name       Description       Amount         Use and Pay Package - Use & Pay Plan       Period: 11/7/2013 4:50 AM to 12/1/2013 12:00 AM       50.00         BillinginvoiceYTD       BillinginvoiceYTD       50.00         Use ard Pay Package - Basic Plan       Period: 11/1/2013 12:00 AM to 11/7/2013 4:50 AM       50.00         Previous Adjustments       -515.00       50.00         Total       515.00       50.00         Total       515.00       50.00         VAT 4%       50.63       50.63         C51 3%       C51 3%       50.18         Tax Total       52.15       50.63         Cotal       51.50       50.18      <	Item Name       Description       Amount         Use and Pay Package - Use & Pay Plan       Period: 11/7/2013 4:50 AM to 12/1/2013 12:00 AM       50.00         BillinginvoiceYTD       BillinginvoiceYTD       50.00         Use ge       BillinginvoiceYTD: 0 unit       50.00         Basic Package - Basic Plan       Period: 11/1/2013 12:00 AM to 11/7/2013 4:50 AM       50.00         Previous Adjustments       -515.00       50.00         Description       Amount       51.00         Taxes       Sub Total       513.00         National CST 3%       CST 3%       50.63         CST 3%       CST 3%       50.80         Sto Total       52.15       50.80         EST 1%       EST 1%       50.18         CST 3%       CST 3%       50.80         CST 3%       S0.18       51.80         Sto Total       52.15       50.18         EST 1%       EST 1%       50.18         Catal Sto Total       52.15       50.18         Payments       Made so far!       11/1/2013 12.00 AM so UV rearliest convenience, and do not hesitat         Description       Made so far!       11/1/2013 12.00 AM so UV rearliest convenience, and do not hesitat		Dotaile	<ul> <li>Sorramajo</li> </ul>	
BillinginvoiceYD       BillinginvoiceYD       S0.00         Usage:       BillinginvoiceYD: 0 unit       S0.00         Previous Adjustments       Previous Month Cost Adjustments       S15.00         Taxes       Sub Total       S15.00         VAT 4%       VAT 4%       S0.61         CST 3%       CST 3%       S0.01         PST 5%       S0.51       S0.51         Taxes       Tax Total       S2.15         PST 5%       S0.51       S0.51         Description       Amount       S1.50         PST 5%       S0.51       S0.61         Description       S0.61       S0.61         PST 5%       S0.51       S0.61         Description       S0.61	BillingInvoiceYTD       BillingInvoiceYTD       S0.00         Usage:       BillingInvoiceYTD: 0 unit       S0.00         Previous Adjustments       Previous Month Cost Adjustments       S15.00         Previous Adjustments       Previous Month Cost Adjustments       S15.00         Taxes       Sub Total       S15.00         VAT 4%       VAT 4%       S0.61         CS7 3%       CS7 3%       S0.01         PS7 5%       S0.51       S0.02         Tax Total       S2.15       S0.02         Parenets       S15.10       S1.50         Dystage       S15.51       S0.02         Post 5%       CS7 3%       S0.02         S15.10       EST 1%       S0.02         Dystage       S15.10       S0.02         Parenets       S0.02       S0.02         Parenets       S0.02       S0.02         Parenets       S0.02       S0.02         Post Parenets       S0.02       S0.02         Parenets       S0.02       S0.02         Parenets       S0.02       S0.02         Parenets       S0.02       S0.02         Parenets       Parenets       S0.02         Parenets	BillingInvoiceYTD       BillingInvoiceYTD       S0.00         Usage:       BillingInvoiceYTD: 0 unit       S0.00         Tacks       Previous Adjustments       Previous Month Cost Adjustments       Previous         Taxes       Sub Total       S15.80         Taxes       Amount       Amount         VAT 4%       VAT 4%       S0.63         CST 3%       CST 3%       S0.40         PST 5%       S0.51       S0.50         Tax Total       S2.15         ST 1%       CST 3%       S0.60         CST 3%       CST 3%       S0.60         PST 5%       S0.51       S0.50         Data       S1.50       S0.50         Data       CST 3%       S0.60         CST 3%       CST 3%       S0.60         Data       CST 3%       S0.60         CST 1%       CST 1%       S0.10         Tax Total       S2.15       S0.50         Data       S1.50       S0.50         Data       S1.50       S0.60         Data       S1.50       S0.60         Data       S1.50       S0.50         Data       S1.50       S0.50         Data       <			Description	Amount
Usage:       Billinginvoice/TD: 0 unit         Basic Package - Basic Plan       Period: 11/1/2013 12:00 AM to 11/7/2013 4:50 AM       \$30.80         Previous Adjustments       +\$15.00         Decouple Adjustments       +\$15.00         Taxes       Sub Total       \$15.80         Name       Description       Amount         VAT 4%       VAT 4%       \$0.63         CST 3%       CST 3%       \$0.40         PST 5%       \$0.50       \$0.80         EST 1%       EST 1%       \$0.12         Description       Amount       \$0.80         PST 5%       \$0.51       \$0.80         EST 1%       EST 1%       \$0.18         Description       \$0.80       \$0.18         Description       \$0.80       \$0.18         Description       \$0.18       \$0.18	Usage:       Billinginvoice/TD: 0 unit         Basic Package - Basic Plan       Period: 11/1/2013 12:00 AM to 11/7/2013 4:50 AM       \$30.00         Previous Adjustments       - \$15.00 <b>Taxes</b> Sub Total       \$15.00         VAT 4%       \$0.63       \$0.63         CST 3%       CST 3%       \$0.40         PST 5%       \$0.51       \$0.18         EST 1%       CST 3%       \$0.18         CST 3%       CST 3%       \$0.18         PST 5%       S0.18       \$0.18         CST 1%       CST 1%       \$0.18         Description       \$15.00       \$0.18         PST 5%       CST 3%       \$0.18         CST 1%       CST 1%       \$0.18         Description       \$15.00       \$0.18         Description       \$17.95       \$0.18         Description       \$17.95       \$17.95         Description       \$17.95       \$17.95         Description       \$17.95       \$17.95         Parments       Notes       \$17.95         Notes       Pase find the cost-breakdown for the services used. Please make payment at your earliest convenience, and do not the slate to context me with any questions.	Usage:       BillinginvoiceYTD: 0 unit         Basic Package - Basic Plan       Period: 11/1/2013 12:00 AM to 11/7/2013 4:50 AM       \$30.80         Previous Adjustments       Previous Month Cost Adjustments       \$15.00         Taxes       Sub Total       \$15.80         Taxes       Amount       \$0.63         CST 3%       CST 3%       \$0.40         PST 5%       S0.85       \$0.63         CST 1%       CST 3%       \$0.43         PST 5%       S0.85       \$0.63         CST 1%       CST 3%       \$0.43         PST 5%       S0.85       \$0.63         CST 1%       CST 1%       \$0.63         CST 1%       CST 3%       \$0.43         PST 5%       S0.85       \$0.63         CST 1%       CST 1%       \$0.18         Data       Tax Total       \$2.15         Total       \$17.95       \$17.95         Payments       Stronge       \$17.95         Payments       Stronge       \$17.95         Payments       Payments made so far!       \$17.95         Notes       Payments made so far!       \$17.95         Payments       Stronge payments and so not hestato payment at your earliest convenience, and do not h		Use and Pay Package - Use & Pay Plan	Period: 11/7/2013 4:50 AM to 12/1/2013 12:00 AM	\$0.00
BillinginvoiceYTD: 0 unit       S30.80         Basic Package - Basic Plan       Period: 1/1/2013 12:00 AM to 11/7/2013 4:50 AM       S30.80         Previous Adjustments       - \$15.00       Sub Total       \$15.00         Previous Adjustments       Previous Month Cost Adjustments       - \$15.00         Sub Total       \$15.80         Taxes       Amount         VAT 4%       \$0.63         CST 3%       CST 3%       \$0.80         CST 3%       CST 3%       \$0.80         EST 1%       EST 1%       \$0.18         Payments       EST 1%       \$0.18         Payments       EST 1%       \$17.95         Payments       Previous sof ar!       \$17.95         Payments       Previous sof ar!       \$17.95         Payments       Previous sof ar!       \$17.95         Payment sof ar!       \$17.95       \$17.95	BillinginvoiceYTD: 0 unit       S30.80         Basic Package - Basic Plan       Period: 1/1/2013 12:00 AM to 11/7/2013 4:50 AM         Previous Adjustments       S15.00         Drevious Adjustments       S15.00         Sub Total       S15.00         Taxes       Monont         VAT 4%       S0.63         CST 3%       CST 3%         CST 3%       S0.10         PST 5%       S0.18         EST 1%       S15.00         Stat       S2.15         Tax Total       S2.15         Total       S17.95         Payments       S17.95         No payments made so far!       S17.95         Notes       S17.95         Pase find the cost-breakdown for the services used. Please make payment at your earliest convenience, and do not hesitat to contact me with any questions.	BillinginvoiceYTD: 0 unit       330.00         Previous Adjustments       -515.00         Previous Adjustments       -515.00         Sub Total       515.00         Taxes		BillingInvoiceYTD		\$0.00
Previous Adjustments       \$15.00         Sub Total       \$15.80         Taxes       Item Name       Description       Amount         VAT 4%       VAT 4%       \$0.63         CST 3%       CST 3%       \$0.49         PST 5%       PST 5%       \$0.85         EST 1%       EST 1%       \$0.18         Total       \$12.95         Payments         Payments         Notes         Please find the cost-breakdown for the services used. Please make payment at your earliest convenience, and do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.	Previous Adjustments       -\$15.00         Sub Total       \$15.80         Taxes       Item Name       Description       Amount         VAT 4%       VAT 4%       \$0.63         CST 3%       CST 3%       \$0.49         PST 5%       PST 5%       \$0.85         EST 1%       EST 1%       \$0.18         Total       \$17.95         Payments         Payments made so far!         Notes         Please find the cost-breakdown for the services used. Please make payment at your earliest convenience, and do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.	Previous Adjustments       -\$15.00         Sub Total       \$15.80         Item Name         VAT 4%       S0.63         CST 3%       CST 3%         CST 3%       CST 3%         PST 5%       PST 5%         EST 1%       EST 1%         Total       \$17.90         Payments       S0.73         Payments       S0.86			BillingInvoiceYTD: 0 unit	
Sub Total       \$15.80         Taxes       Amount         VAT 4%       \$0.63         CST 3%       CST 3%         CST 3%       CST 3%         PST 5%       \$0.85         EST 1%       EST 1%         Payments       \$17.95         Payments       Stress         Notes       Please find the cost-breakdown for the services used. Please make payment at your earliest convenience, and do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.	Sub Total     \$15.80       Taxes     Amount       Item Name     Description       VAT 4%     S0.63       CST 3%     CST 3%       CST 3%     CST 3%       PST 5%     S0.85       EST 1%     EST 1%       Fax Total     \$2.15       Total     \$17.95   Payments Payments made so far! Please find the cost-breakdown for the services used. Please make payment at your earliest convenience, and do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.	Sub Total       \$15.80         Taxes       Amount         Var 4%       Var 4%       S0.63         CST 3%       CST 3%       S0.40         PST 5%       PST 5%       S0.85         EST 1%       EST 1%       S17.80         Payments         Payments       Strotal       S17.95         Payments       Strotal       S17.95 <t< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t<>				
Item NameDescriptionAmountVAT 4%VAT 4%S0.63CST 3%CST 3%S0.49PST 5%PST 5%S0.85EST 1%EST 1%S0.18Tax Total \$2.15Total \$17.95PaymentsPaymentsNotesPlease find the cost-breakdown for the services used. Please make payment at your earliest convenience, and do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.	Item NameDescriptionAmountVAT 4%VAT 4%S0.63CST 3%CST 3%S0.49PST 5%PST 5%S0.85EST 1%EST 1%S0.18Tax Total \$2.15Total \$17.95PaymentsPaymentsNotesPlease find the cost-breakdown for the services used. Please make payment at your earliest convenience, and do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.	Item NameDescriptionAmountVAT 4%VAT 4%S0.63CST 3%CST 3%S0.49PST 5%S0.85S0.85EST 1%EST 1%S0.18Tax TotalS2.15TotalS17.95PaymentsNotesPlease find the cost-breakdown for the services used. Please make payment at your earliest convenience, and do not hesitate to contact tm with any questions.		Frevious Aujustilients		
VAT 4%       S0.63         CST 3%       CST 3%       S0.49         PST 5%       PST 5%       S0.85         EST 1%       EST 1%       S0.18         Tax Total \$2.15         Total \$17.95         Deaments         Notes         Please find the cost-breakdown for the services used. Please make payment at your earliest convenience, and do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.	VAT 4%VAT 4%S0.63CST 3%CST 3%S0.49PST 5%PST 5%S0.85EST 1%EST 1%S0.18Tax Total \$2.15Total \$17.95PaymentsPaymentsNotesPlease find the cost-breakdown for the services used. Please make payment at your earliest convenience, and do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.	VAT 4%VAT 4%S0.63CST 3%CST 3%S0.49PST 5%PST 5%S0.85EST 1%EST 1%S0.18Tax TotalS2.15TotalS1.79PaymentsNotesPlease find the cost-breakdown for the services used. Please make payment at your earliest convenience, and do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.		Taxes		
CST 3%CST 3%S0.49PST 5%PST 5%S0.85EST 1%EST 1%S0.18Tax TotalS2.15TotalS17.95PaymentsNotesPlease find the cost-breakdown for the services used. Please make payment at your earliest convenience, and do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.	CST 3%CST 3%S0.49PST 5%PST 5%S0.85EST 1%EST 1%S0.18Tax TotalS2.15TotalS17.95PaymentsNotesPlease find the cost-breakdown for the services used. Please make payment at your earliest convenience, and do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.	CST 3%CST 3%S0.49PST 5%PST 5%S0.85EST 1%EST 1%S0.18Tar TotalS2.15TotalS17.95PaymentsNotesPlease find the cost-breakdown for the services used. Please make payment at your earliest convenience, and do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.		Item Name	Description	Amount
PST 5%       PST 5%       S0.85         EST 1%       EST 1%       S0.18         Tax Total       S2.15         Total       S17.95    Payments        Notes    Please find the cost-breakdown for the services used. Please make payment at your earliest convenience, and do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.	PST 5%       PST 5%       S0.85         EST 1%       EST 1%       S0.18         Tax Total       S2.15         Total       S17.95    Payments        Image: Contract the services used. Please make payment at your earliest convenience, and do not hesitate to contact the with any questions.	PST 5%       PST 5%       S0.85         EST 1%       EST 1%       S0.18         Tax Total       S2.15         Total       S17.95    Payments        Image: Contract the services used. Please make payment at your earliest convenience, and do not hesitate to contact the with any questions.				
EST 1%     EST 1%     S0.18       Tax Total     S2.15       Total     S17.95   Payments       No payments made so far!   Please find the cost-breakdown for the services used. Please make payment at your earliest convenience, and do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.	EST 1%     S0.18       Tax Total     S2.15       Total     S17.95         Payments       Notes   Please find the cost-breakdown for the services used. Please make payment at your earliest convenience, and do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.	EST 1%       S0.18         Tax Total       S2.15         Total       S17.95             Payments       Image: Comparis to the services used. Please make payment at your earliest convenience, and do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.				
Tax Total       \$2.15         Total       \$17.95         Payments       Image: Comparison of the services used. Please make payment at your earliest convenience, and do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.	Tax Total       \$2.15         Total       \$17.95         Payments       Image: Comparing the content of the services used. Please make payment at your earliest convenience, and do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.	Tax Total       \$2.15         Total       \$17.95         Payments       Image: Comparison of the services used. Please make payment at your earliest convenience, and do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.				
Total       \$17.95         Payments       Image: Comparison of the services used. Please make payment at your earliest convenience, and do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.	Total       \$17.95         Payments       Image: Comparison of the services used. Please make payment at your earliest convenience, and do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.	Total       \$17.95         Payments       •         No payments made so far!       •         Notes       •         Please find the cost-breakdown for the services used. Please make payment at your earliest convenience, and do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.       •		ESTIN		
No payments made so far!           Notes           Please find the cost-breakdown for the services used. Please make payment at your earliest convenience, and do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.	No payments made so far!           Notes           Please find the cost-breakdown for the services used. Please make payment at your earliest convenience, and do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.	No payments made so far!           Notes           Please find the cost-breakdown for the services used. Please make payment at your earliest convenience, and do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.				
Notes Please find the cost-breakdown for the services used. Please make payment at your earliest convenience, and do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.	Notes Please find the cost-breakdown for the services used. Please make payment at your earliest convenience, and do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.	Notes Please find the cost-breakdown for the services used. Please make payment at your earliest convenience, and do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.		Payments		
Please find the cost-breakdown for the services used. Please make payment at your earliest convenience, and do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.	Please find the cost-breakdown for the services used. Please make payment at your earliest convenience, and do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.	Please find the cost-breakdown for the services used. Please make payment at your earliest convenience, and do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.		No payments made so far!		
to contact me with any questions.	to contact me with any questions.	to contact me with any questions.		Notes		
					e services used. Please make payment at your earliest convenience,	, and do not hesitate
Payment terms: to be received within 30 days.	Payment terms: to be received within 30 days.	Payment terms: to be received within 30 days.				
				Payment terms: to be received within	30 days.	

Invoice Page



### 9.3 Tenant Invoice

Tenant Invoice refers to the Invoice of an individual Tenant, when an invoice is generated by the Billing Engine for a Tenant; it is displayed under Admin>> My Account>>My Bills

#### **Components of My Bills**

Account Summary – Displays the detailed information about the package, total amount paid etc

Current Bills- Displays the current month bill details

Current Bill Charge Details- Displays the current month bill breakup details

Previous Bills- Displays all the previous month Bill details [Highlighted in Red are unpaid bills]

Bill Reports - Interactive Chart displays the bills charges



My Account Sul	<b>1</b> oscription	Tenant	Access Contro	Configuratio	on Bus	iness Events	Notifications		•	) nitor	
My Bills											
Account Summary Tenant Name Package Q View History Price Plan Subscription Period	Acme Corp Use and Par Use & Pay F 11/7/2013	y Package Plan	ewski@techcello1.c	com 🏷 +1-903-766-	2159			Total Bi Total A Total Pi Overdu	mount	90 \$12,556.76 \$0.00 \$12,556.76	
Current Bill Stateme	ent									⊚ View ⊙ D	ownloa
Previous Balance \$12,556.76		ce No#	<b>Bill Period</b>	/1/2013	Invoic 11/7/2	e Date 013	Bill Amount \$32.03	Total Amount Pay \$12,588.79	able	Due Date 12/5/201	e
Current Bill Charge	Details					Previou	s Bills				
Item Name		Description			Amount	Invoice N			Amount	Paid	Viev
Use and Pay Package - U	se & Pay Plan	Period: 11/7/	2013 4:50 AM to 1	2/1/2013 12:00 AM	\$0.00	1727	10/1/2013	- 11/1/2013	\$154.96	\$0.00	۲
BillingInvoiceYTD		BillingInvoice	YTD		\$0.00	1702	9/1/2013 -	10/1/2013	\$154.96	\$0.00	۲
Basic Package - Basic Pla	n		2013 12:00 AM to	11/7/2013 4:50 AM	\$30.80	342	8/1/2013 -	9/1/2013	\$149.00	\$0.00	۲
/AT 4%		VAT 4%			\$1.23	337	7/1/2013 -		\$149.00	\$0.00	۲
						332	6/1/2013 -	7/1/2013	\$149.00	\$0.00	۲
						328	5/1/2013 -	6/1/2013	\$149.00	\$0.00	۲
						324	4/1/2013 -	5/1/2013	\$149.00	\$0.00	۲
						320	3/1/2013 -	4/1/2013	\$149.00	\$0.00	۲
						315	2/1/2013 -	3/1/2013	\$149.00	\$0.00	۲
						311	1/1/2013 -	2/1/2013	\$149.00	\$0.00	۲
						Show 1	) 💌 entries Showing	1 to 10 of 90 entries	K () 1	2 3 4	5 🖸
Bill Reports				Type: Colu	umn 💌	Usage S	statistics				
Years: 🛛 2006 🔍	2007 🛛 😨 2	2008 👿 20	009 📝 2010	☑ 2011 ☑ 20	012	Usage Na	me	Max Lir	nit Used	Re	emainin
2013						BillingInvo	iceAmount	UNLIMIT	ED 0	UI	NLIMITE
		Bill cha	arges			BillingInvo	iceYTD	UNLIMIT	ED 0	UI	NLIMITE
5180.00 T											
5160.00 -											
5140.00	Mar Apr	May Jun	Jul Aug Ser Il Months	Oct Nov D	ec						
Jan Feb		BI									

### 9.4 Clients Invoices

Client Invoice Refers to collection of all the bills of the Tenants. This is generally available only for Product Administrators and Tenants who have sub Tenants under them especially in the Tenant Hierarchy Scenarios i.e Resellers, Enterprise Tenants etc

To View Client Bills, Navigate to Admin >> Subscription>> Client Bills



CelloSaaS							admin@company	.com 🔻   :	≓ Chang	ge Tenar
	1 Cription Tenant	Access Control Config	guration Busi	tt iness Events	Notifications	Workflow	Reporting	() Monitor		
Manage Child Bills										
Tenant: Acme Corp	Q Searct									
Account Summary										
Tenant Name	Acme Corp 🛛 belva.maj	ewski@techcello1.com 📞+1-90	3-766-2159				Total Bills	90		
Package Q View History	Basic Package						Total Amount	\$12,	556.76	
Price Plan	Basic Plan						Total Paid	\$0.00	0	
Subscription Period	5/17/2006 12:00 AM						Overdue Amount	\$12,	556.76	
Current Bill Stateme	nt						l	Edit 💿 Vi	ew 🕲 D	ownloa
Previous Balance	Invoice No#	Bill Period	Invoice	e Date	Bill Amount	Total Amo	unt Payable	D	ue Date	•
\$12,556.76	1754	11/1/2013 - 12/1/2013	11/6/2	013	\$154.96	\$12,711.72		1	2/5/201	3
Current Bill Charge D	Details			Previous B	ills					
Item Name	Description		Amount	Invoice No#	Bill Period		Amount	Paid	Edit	View
Basic Package - Basic Plan	Period: 11/1/2013 12:	00 AM to 12/1/2013 12:00 AM	\$149.00	1727	10/1/2013 -	11/1/2013	\$154.96	\$0.00	ø	۲
VAT 4%	VAT 4%		\$5.96	1702	9/1/2013 - 1	0/1/2013	\$154.96	\$0.00	ø	۲
				342	8/1/2013 - 9	9/1/2013	\$149.00	\$0.00	ø	۲
				337	7/1/2013 - 8	3/1/2013	\$149.00	\$0.00	ø	۲
				332	6/1/2013 - 7	7/1/2013	\$149.00	\$0.00	ø	۲
				328	5/1/2013 - 6	6/1/2013	\$149.00	\$0.00	ø	۲
				324	4/1/2013 - 5	5/1/2013	\$149.00	\$0.00	ø	۲
				320	3/1/2013 - 4	4/1/2013	\$149.00	\$0.00	ø	۲
				315	2/1/2013 - 3	3/1/2013	\$149.00	\$0.00	ø	۲
				311	1/1/2013 - 2	2/1/2013	\$149.00	\$0.00	ø	۲
				Show 10	<ul> <li>entries Showin</li> </ul>	ig 1 to 10 of <b>90</b> e	entries 🛛 🕅 🔇	1 2	3 4 5	5 🜔

#### **Client Bills**

### 9.5 Invoice Search

The application administrator can have a unified look of all the past invoices using Search Bills page.

Login as Product Administrator and Navigate to Billing >> Search Client Bills



My Account	Subscription	Tenant			Configuration E	usiness Events	Notifications	Workflow	Repo		Monit		
earch Bills													
ilter			Sea	arch Result									
Tenant:	All	•	No	tification	elect a notification	🔹 🖂 Email							
Status:	All	•											
From Date:				Invoice No#	Tenant Name	Invoice Date	Bill Period Start	Bill Period End	Amount	Paid	Status	Email Audit	Vie
				1727	Acme Corp	11/5/2013	10/1/2013	11/1/2013	\$154.96	\$0.00	UNPAID		۲
To Date:				1753	Praxis Corporation	11/5/2013	10/1/2013	11/1/2013	\$518.96	\$0.00	UNPAID		۲
Reset	Search			1752	Omni Consimer Products	11/5/2013	10/1/2013	11/1/2013	\$154.96	\$0.00	UNPAID		4
				1751	LuthorCorp	11/5/2013	10/1/2013	11/1/2013	\$154.96	\$0.00	UNPAID		4
				1750	Mr. Sparkle	11/5/2013	10/1/2013	11/1/2013	\$154.96	\$0.00	UNPAID		4
				1749	Globo-Chem	11/5/2013	10/1/2013	11/1/2013	\$154.96	\$0.00	UNPAID		4
				1748	Galaxy Corp	11/5/2013	10/1/2013	11/1/2013	\$154.96	\$0.00	UNPAID		۲
				1747	Extensive Enterprise	11/5/2013	10/1/2013	11/1/2013	\$518.96	\$0.00	UNPAID		٩
				1746	Ankh-Sto Associates	11/5/2013	10/1/2013	11/1/2013	\$154.96	\$0.00	UNPAID		۹
				1745	Allied Biscuit	11/5/2013	10/1/2013	11/1/2013	\$518.96		UNPAID		(

v 4.3.1.0

Copyright © 2013 by techcello.com All Rights Reserved.

#### **Search Client Bills**

### 10 FAQs

#### Can I change the billing model i.e. post-paid to post or vice versa being in production?

Yes, refer here.

# Can I change the billing frequency i.e. monthly to quarterly or any other billing frequencies supported in TechCello?

Billing frequency can be changed in Price Plan configuration page. However, it's not advisable to change the price plan's frequency once tenants are subscribed to it.

Instead create a new price plan with new required frequency and map the tenants to the new plan.

#### What is Free Trial period?

A period of time during which the product can be evaluated without any charge.

#### What is Meter-able component?

A component or service which will be served on charge basis for every or set of consumption.



#### As an ISV how do I know the Type of Billing i.e. Post-paid or Post-paid?

You can witness the type of Billing model either navigating to Subscription >> Customize Billing Periods page

Cello <b>SaaS</b>				≓Char	ge Tenant admin@company.com▼
My Account	Customize Billing F	Periods			
Subscription	Billing Periods				
	Mode	Bill Frequency	Start Day	Charge Day	Edit
Access Control	Prepaid	Monthly	1	1	1
Configuration	Prepaid	Quarterly	1	1	1
	Prepaid	Semiannual	1	1	1
Business its	Prepaid	Annual	1	1	1
	Type of Billing Model				

Alternatively, Open dbo.BillingSettings table and refer Mode Column and update

- 0- Postpaid
- 1- Postpaid

Note: Only ISV Administrator will be allowed to access the page.

#### How to Change Billing Model from Postpaid to Post & Vice versa?

Open dbo.BillingSettings table and refer Mode Column and update

- 0- Postpaid
- 1- Postpaid

After updating the Billing Settings, Restart the Billing Service located in the respective location.



### **11 Contact Information**

Any problem using this guide (or) using Cello Framework. Please feel free to contact us, we will be happy to assist you in getting started with Cello.

Email: <a href="mailto:support@techcello.com">support@techcello.com</a>

Phone: +1(609)503-7163

Skype: techcello

